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City Project No. PUR 17-024     Date: November 20, 2017 

CITY OF STOCKTON – MUNICIPAL UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 

 

Project: Wastewater Cost of Service Rate Study 

 

Questions & Answers No. 1 - October 25, 2017 

From: Edward Donahue [mailto:edward.donahue@mfsgllc.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, October 25, 2017 1:43 PM 
To: Daniel Garza <Daniel.Garza@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: RFQ #PUR 17-024 Wastewater Rates 

Q1:  “In Section 2.2 of this RFQ, on page 13, in Section 2.2, Scope of Services, it 
states at the bottom of the page that the rate study report must be signed by a 
professional engineer certified by the State of California.  What is the basis for 
this requirement?  This seems to be unnecessarily restrictive; we’ve been doing 
this work for almost a half-century, in California and across the country, and 
never run into this before.  Back before the Clean Water Act, which dramatically 
escalated the cost of wastewater treatment and disposal, when costs were 
relatively minor and wastewater costs were largely paid for with real estate taxes, 
or via a simple rate derived by dividing “A” by “B” to produce “C”, consulting 
engineers used to address this subject, but the subject these days requires 
considerable more financial and accounting expertise than most engineering 
firms possess.  A few of the very large national engineering firms do have the 
necessary financial expertise – but so do specialty consulting firms, financial 
advisory firms and some CPA firms. “  

A1:   The City determined that the level of a Licensed Professional Engineer (issued in 
California) signing the comprehensive final report is justified based on the global 
and comprehensive approach that will be required.  This is also partly based on 
Prop. 218 property-related fees. California courts are scrutinizing the rate studies 
to ensure they comply with the requirements of Article XIII D, Section 6 of the 
California Constitution. Thus, the cost of service study area is subject to 
challenge in California, where it has been aggressively litigated by taxpayer 
groups. We believe a licensed engineer, in conjunction with accountants, is the 
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appropriate personnel to perform this comprehensive review, which may better 
withstand a taxpayers’ group challenge.   

______________________________________________________________________ 

Questions & Answers No. 2 - November 6, 2017 

From: Morales, Alberto J. [mailto:MoralesAJ@bv.com]  
Sent: Monday, November 06, 2017 2:25 PM 
To: Daniel Garza <Daniel.Garza@stocktonca.gov> 
Cc: Even Marcelo <Even.Marcelo@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: WASTEWATER COST OF SERVICE RATE STUDY (PUR 17-024) 

Q1:  “On Page 13, it states “The report shall be signed by a professional engineer 
certified by the State of California.” Typically these type of studies don’t require a 
signature from a professional engineer. Could you clarify is this is required?”.  

  
A1:  See answer (A1) to October 25, 2017 question (Q1). 

Q2:  “On Page 14, it states “Conduct and coordinate all required mailings and fee 
notifications to all affected property owners impacted by the proposed changes to 
the rate structure and/or billing.” What are the expectations of the Consultant? 
Will the City provide a vendor for mass mailing? Will the City provide the mass 
mailing listing of affected property owners?”.  

 
A2:   The City will provide the list of property owners, but it will be up to the consultant 

to review those rolls to ensure the correct fee/calculation is used.  The consultant 
should then format the roll and any letters into a mail merge format that the City 
can print and coordinate the mailing.  The review and certification of the rolls and 
development of the mailings is the consultant’s responsibility. The actual printing, 
mailing, and postage will be the City’s responsibility.   

 

Questions & Answers No. 3 – November 8, 2017 

From: Malinna San  
Sent: Wednesday, November 08, 2017 3:23 PM 
To: 'daniel.garza@stocktonca.gov' <daniel.garza@stocktonca.gov> 
Cc: Khanh Phan <kphan@raftelis.com>; Sally Van Etten <svanetten@raftelis.com> 
Subject: Wastewater Cost of Service Rate Study RFQ (PUR 17-024) 

Q1:  Please clarify if 3.0.3 Management/Method of Operation is in comparison to a 
Scope of Work description.  If so, how detailed should it be considering the page 
limit?  
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A1: Proponents are to provide sufficient information demonstrating their approach in 
providing the requested services and still meet the required page limit.  

 

Q2: Does the 10 pages limit include front and back covers, SOQ form, Proponent 
Agreement form, Additional Information section (as an appendix), Financial 
Statements (confidential), exceptions, blank pages (to facilitate double sided 
printing), and tabs? 

 
A2: The Cover Letter, Table of Contents, Executive Summary, project team resumes, 

Non-Collusion Affidavit, SOQ Form, Proponent Agreement Form, Financial 
Statements, section tabs are not included in the 10-page count. 

 

Q3: Does the 10 pt. font limit apply to headers, footers, tables, charts, and graphics? 

A3: No, 10 pt. font does not apply to headers, footers, tables, charts, and graphics, 
providing clarity, neatness, and readability are maintained  

 

Q4: The SOQ stated the project team resumes are not counted towards the page 
limit.  Are we allowed to include it as an appendix?  

 
A4: Yes, Project Team resumes may be included as an appendix.  
 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Questions & Answers No. 4 - November 9, 2017 

From: Koorn, Shawn W. [mailto:Shawn.Koorn@hdrinc.com]  
Sent: Thursday, November 09, 2017 1:59 PM 
To: Even Marcelo <Even.Marcelo@stocktonca.gov>; Marianne Heath 
<Marianne.Heath@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: RFQ Wastewater Cost of Service Rate Study 

Q1: The RFQ states “… shall not exceed 10 pages on double sided paper…”.  To 
clarify, does this mean a total of 20 pages on 10 double sided pieces of paper, or 
a total of 10 pages on 5 double sided pieces of paper? 

 
A1: SOQ shall not exceed 10 pages total, excluding the Cover Letter, Table of 

Contents, Executive Summary, project team resumes, Non-Collusion Affidavit, 
SOQ Form, Proponent Agreement Form, Financial Statements, and section tabs.  
This means 20 pages total if counting a page twice for front and back (double 
sided).  
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Q2: The last bullet on page 13 of the RFQ discusses the final report.  The discussion 
includes a connection fees comparison. Is the City requesting a connection fee 
analysis as part of this study? 

 
A2: No. 
 

______________________________________________________________________  

Questions & Answers No. 5 - November 10, 2017 

From: Kim Boehler [mailto:kboehler@nbsgov.com]  
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2017 4:24 PM 
To: Even Marcelo <Even.Marcelo@stocktonca.gov> 
Cc: Megan Radoci <mradoci@nbsgov.com> 
Subject: RFQ Questions - Wastewater Cost of Service Rate Study  

Q1: For Single-Family residential customers, is the City interested in exploring a 
variable rate component based on average-winter water use? If so, can the City 
obtain water consumption data for those customers who receive water service 
from California Water Co.? 

 
A1: The City is relying on the consultant to make recommendations on the most 

appropriated method to calculate fees.  CalWater customer use data is not 
available from the City.    

 
Q2: Would your utility billing system be able to accommodate a winter water use-type 

sewer charge? If not, we would assume the consultant will not pursue this option. 
 
A2: No. 
 
Q3: Do your current non-residential sewer rates seem to be working well, or are you 

looking for the consultant to evaluate alternative rate structures for these 
customers?  

 
A3: The selected proponent is expected to evaluate the current structure to 

determine appropriateness, make recommendations, and provide alternatives if 
necessary. 

 
Q4: Are there any specific sewer rate structures you would like evaluated in this 

study? 
 
A4: No.  The City expects the proponent to evaluate and make recommendations.  
 
Q5: How does the service provided by the City differ between the City Billed and 

Maintained, and County District Billed customers?  
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A5: There are County pockets located within the boundaries of the City.  Generally, 

the upper laterals in these areas are maintained by the County where the main 
line conveying the sewage to the Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility is 
maintained by the City.  The County areas are designated as the County District 
Billed Customers.   

 
Q6: Can we assume the City will be able to provide annual quantities (pounds/tons) 

of BOD/TSS, and flows (MG) received at the Regional Wastewater Control 
Facility? 

 
A6: Yes. 
 
Q7: What is the expected timing for the treatment plant upgrade that the City has 

planned? Is the cost expected to be debt and/or cash-funded? 
 
A7: Planning and design are underway now, with an expected construction 

completion date of 2023.  The project will be primarily bond funded, with a portion 
cash funded.  

 
Q8: Does the City need its Industrial Pretreatment and/or Fats, Oils and Grease 

Program fees updated in this process? 
 
A8: Not at this time. 
 
Q9: Does the City need its wastewater connection fees updated in this process? 
 
A9: No.  Connection fees are being considered under a separate contract.  
 
Q10: Can you provide a copy of the prior rate study?  
 
A10: Yes. 
 
Q11: What is the City’s target implementation date for new rates? 
 
A11: This is a fast track project.  Expected implementation would be mid to late 2018. 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Questions & Answers No. 6 - November 13, 2017 

From: Malinna San [mailto:msan@raftelis.com]  
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2017 2:09 PM 
To: Daniel Garza <Daniel.Garza@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: RE: Wastewater Cost of Service Rate Study RFQ (PUR 17-024) 
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Q1: We usually use our own staff for citizen advisory and other public meetings.  
Does the City have local public relations firm(s) that it generally prefers to use? 

 
A1: The City doesn’t have a preferred public relations firm.  
 

Q2: Will the City be using the Stockton City Attorney’s Office and/or outside counsel 
for review of the rate study and related public documents?  If outside counsel, 
which firm? 

 
A2: It has not been determined if outside council will be used.  
 

Q3: If an addendum is required to be included with the proposal, will that be counted 
towards the page limit? 

 
A3: The addendum generally does not count towards the page limit unless otherwise 

stated in the addendum itself.  
 
 
 


